
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TWENTl'-THIRD SESSION 

Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 62: 
International Year for Human Rights (con

tinued): 
(~) Measures and activities undertaken in 

connexio11 with the International Year for 
Human Rights: report of the Secretary
General; 

(b) International Conference on Human Rights 
Consideration of draft resolution A/C,3/ 

Page 

L.1633/Rev.1 (concluded) •• o ••••• , • • 1 
Consideration of draft resolution A/C.3/ 

L.1635/Rev.1 •••••••••••• , , , 0 • • • 5 

Chairman: Mr. Erik NETTEL (Austria). 

AGENDA ITEM 62 

International Year for Human Rights (continued) 
(A/7194, A/7195, A/7195/Add.1 and Add.3-W/ 
CONF .32/41, A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.1, A/C.3/L.1635/ 
Rev .1, A/C .3/L .1637 /Rev .1, A/C.3/L. 1638-1641, 
A/C.3/L.1642/Rev.1 ,A/C.3/L.1647, A/C.3/L.1649): 

(a) Measures and activities undertaken in connexion 
- with the International Year for Human Rights: 

report of the Secretary-Generali 
(~ International Conference on Human Rights 

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT RESOLUTION 
A/C.3/L,l633/REV.1 (concluded) 

L Mr. FORSHELL (Sweden), speaking on behalf of 
the sponsors of draft resolution A/C.3/L.1633/Rev,1, 
said that operative paragraph 1 contained a purely 
factual error: the resolution mentioned should be 
resolution XXVIII of the XXth International Conference 
of the Red Cross held at Vienna in 1965. With regard 
to the Soviet Union amendment (A/C.3/L.1647), calling 
for the deletion of the fourth sub-paragraph of opera
tive paragraph 1, he recalled that in 1965, when the 
XXth International Conference of the Red Cross had 
considered the question of the protection of civilian 
populations in time of war, it had had before it six 
draft resolutions, including some submitted by Czecho
slovakia and Eastern Germany calling for the prohibi
tion of nuclear weapons. Since the Conference had been 
unable to reach agreement on the various draft reso
lutions i.n question, it had appointed a Drafting Com
mittee, which had drawn up the text of resolution 
XXVIII. At the time of the adoption of that resolution, 
the Chairman of the Drafting Committee had made it 
quite clear that the reference to nuclear weapons in 
no way prejudged the question whether or not such 
weapons were permissible, because that was a ques
tion not within the competence of the Conference of 

1 

THIRD COMMITTEE, 1634th 
MEETING 

Tuesday, 10 Decemhe1 J968, 
at 3.25 p.mo 

NEW YORK 

the Red Cross. All the delegations of Easter!) coun
tries had then voted for resolution XXVIII in its prese!lt 
form. Nevertheless, in a spirit of compromise, the 
sponsors of draft resolution A/Co3/L.1633/Rev.l had 
agreed to the deletion of the fourth sub-paragraph of 
operative paragraph 1, it being understood, however, 
that there was nothing in the rest of the paragraph to 
prevent the principles mentioned therein from apply""' 
ing to all conflicts, whatever the weapons used. 

2. Mr. KALANGALI (Uganda) unreserveuly supported 
the aims of draft resolntiou A/C.3/L,l633/Rev.l be
cause, in the context of the International Year for 
Human Rights, the Committee was in duty bouna to 
reaffirm the need for prutecting civilian populations 
in time of armed conflict. Wars had brought great 
suffering to millions of inr<ocent people in the past 
and continued to do so. A en se in point was the tragic 
fate of the Arab population in the territories occupied 
by Israel, with regard to whom the Committee had just 
been considering a draft ret:iolution (A/C.3/L.1626 2.ml 
Add.1) proposing the establishment of a fact-finding 
committee. He would therefore vote in favour vf draft 
resolution A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.l. However, the term 
"enemy" used in the first sub-paragraph of operative 
paragraph 1 must be defined; it was unacceptable to 
him that, for instance, the freedom fighters who were 
fighting for the liberation of their brothers in South 
Africa, Angola, Portugal and Southern Rhodesia should 
be described as "terrorists". 

3. Mrs. PICKER (United States of America) noted 
that the abolition of war, one of mankind's oldest and 
most cherished hopes, was as yet unfulfilled. Despite 
more than twenty years of striving by the United 
Nations to limit resort to force, there had been more 
than fifty armed conflicts during that relatively brief 
period, and even today, while efforts were bemg made 
to put an end to the tragic hostilities in South··East 
Asia, the Middle East and Africa, voices in many parts 
of the world were calling for the use of armed force 
and violence as an acceptable method of bringing about 
changes where peaceful means appeared too slew or 
ineffective. 

4. Draft resolution A/C.3/L.lo3.3/Hev.1, referred to 
resolution XXIIl of the Teheran Conference entitled 
"Human rights in armed conflicts", That might seem 
to be a contradiction in terms, because warfare was 
inevitably brutal and inhuman, However, until manki11d 
was able to abolish war, it must make every effort to 
reduce as far as possible the suffering which accom
panied it. That effort had begun in earnest with the 
founding of the Red Cross in 1863 and the adoption in 
1864 of the first Geneva Convention. Since then, the 
Red Cross had promoted a whole series of Conven
tions, including those referred to in resolution XXIII 
of the Teheran Conference and in the draft resolution 

A/C.3/SR.1634 



2 General Assembly- Twenty-third Session- Third Committee 

before the Committee, to protect civilians, prisoners 
and combatants and to limit the use of some methods 
of war. The United States was a party to all fourteen 
international agreements except the 1925 Geneva 
Protocol. Although her Government had not formally 
ratified that instrument, it had voted for General As
sembly resolution 2162 B (XXI), which called for strict 
observance by all States ofthe principles and objectives 
of the Protocol. It had at the time set forth its position 
on the Protocol, the principles and objectives of which 
it supported, together with its reasons for not having 
ratified it. The United States delegation had voted for 
resolution XXIII at Teheran and would vote in favour of 
draft resolution A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.l. It supported the 
four principles of resolution XXVIII of the International 
Conference of the Red Cross, the reference to which 
in operative paragraph 1 constituted a reaffirmation 
of existing international law, It regretted that the spon
sors of the draft resolution had agreed, at the request 
of the Soviet Union, to delete the fourth principle, 
because it did not feel that that principle would in 
any way change existing internationallawwithrespect 
to nuclear weapons. It was true that the General As
sembly at its sixteenth session had adopted a declara
tion on the prohibition of the use of nuclear and thermo
nuclear weapons, but she did not think the Soviet Union 
really believed that that resolution (1653 (XVI)) consti
tuted a legal prohibition of the use of nuclear weapons; 
if it did, it would not have proposed the drafting of a 
new international convention on the subject. The XXth 
International Conference of the Red Cross, in adopting 
that fourth principle, had not intended to make any 
decision on the legitimacy of using such weapons; it 
had merely made it clear that nuclear weapons, like 
any others, were subject to the general principles of 
the law of war until such time as Governments came 
to an understanding on measures of disarmament and 
control with a view to their complete prohibition. The 
United States, which depended on nuclear weapons for 
its self-defence and the defence of its allies, was op
posed to any proposal aimed solely at prohibiting the 
use of such weapons. The United States had been pre
pared to give up nuclear weapons when it had been the 
only Power possessing them. However, now that other 
countries had obtained them, a simple prohibition would 
only lead to a less secure world. The United States 
was dedicated to the pursuit of realistic disarmament 
steps, and had supported all agreements concluded for 
that purpose. 

5. The United States had a deep interest in the better 
application of the Geneva Conventions. In Viet-Nam, as 
in all the other conflicts in which it had been involved, 
it had been its consistent policy to abide by the humani
tarian principles enunciated in those Conventions, and 
it regretted that the North Viet-Namese authorities 
had failed to apply the Geneva Convention relative to 
the Treatment of Prisoners of War, repeatedly refusing 
to allow the Red Cross and similar bodies to visit the 
prisoners at their place of detention. The United States 
hoped that the Red Cross, or another impartial inter
mediary, would be permitted to visit American de
tainees in North Korea. 

6. In giving its support to the draft resolution, her 
delegation recognized that the task which the Secre
tary-General was asked to undertake was not an easy 
one; it was confident that he would make every effort 

to produce, in consultation with such non-governmental 
organizations as the International Committee of the 
Red Cross, the thorough and objective study requested 
of him. The Secretary-General should, of course, take 
account of relevant studies already completed or con
templated by the United Nations, in particular the study 
of the effects of the possible use of chemical and bac
teriological means of warfare which had been recn·~~-· 
mended by the Eighteen-Nation Committee on Dis
armament. The United States Government, for its 
part, would do everything it could to help the Secre
tary-General in carrying out his task. 

7. Mr. PAOLINI (France) commended the sponsors 
of the draft resolution (A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.1) andre
called that the head of the French delegatim~ at the 
Teheran Conference, Mr. Rent'l Cassin, had been one 
of the first to request that the Conference should take 
up the question of the protection of human rights in 
time of armed conflict. However, he regretted that 
the draft resolution did not pay a more explicit tribute 
to the work of the Red Cross. The text should also 
reaffirm the basic principle that representatives of 
the Red Cross should be respected and protected. The 
Red Cross had been the first purely humanitarian or
ganization, and it was because of it that the first ad
vances had been made in the field of human rights. 
Its work was of international value only because its 
activities were independent and non-political, in con
trast to the humanitarian activities of the United 
Nations, which always had a somewhat political tinge. 
The existing Red Cross Conventions could be revised 
only with the consent of all the States parties to them, 
The International Committee of the Red Cross should 
therefore be mentioned as one of the international or
ganizations to be consulted by the Secretary-General, 
and he proposed that the words "and in particular the 
International Committee of the Red Cross" should be 
inserted after the words "the appropriate international 
organizations" in operative paragraph 2. 

8. With regard to the Soviet Union amendment (A/C.3/ 
L,1647), which the sponsors of the draft resolution had 
accepted, he agreed that the fourth principle enunciated 
in resolution XXVIII of the XXth International Confe
rence of the Red Cross was of a theoretical nature, 
and he believed that the question of nuclear and simi
lar weapons should be studied in the context of general 
disarmament. However, his delegation would have had 
no difficulty in voting in favour of the draft resolution 
in its original vercion, 

9, Mr. VELA (Guatemala) commended the sponsors 
of draft resolution A/C.3/L,1633/Rev.1, but said that 
he would have preferred the principles enunciated in 
operative paragraph 1 to be expressed more clearly. 
The Committee might limit itself to recalling reso
lution XXVIII of the International Conference of the 
Red Cross, simply stating that the principles enun
ciated therein should be observed by "all authorities", 
without specifying "governmental and other". He also 
proposed that the words "inter alia" in the introductory 
sentence of operative paragraph 1 should be deleted, 
He had reservations with regard to the wording of the 
first principle. The fourth principle was, in his view, 
a humanitarian aspiration which should be taken into 
account, 

10, Mr. NASINOVSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) said that his delegation would be able to 



1634th meeting - 10 December 1968 3 

support draft resolution A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.1, in view 
of the fact that the sponsors had accepted the Soviet 
amendment (A/C"3/L.1647) and agreed to delete the 
fourth sub-paragraph of operative paragraph 1. 

11. It was regrettable that the United States repre
sentative's statement was so unconstructive. His own 
delegation's position was diametrically opposite, since 
the Soviet Union, like most countries, was in favour of 
the immediate prohibition of nuclear weapons. More
over, the United States representative had slandered 
the Democratic Republic of Viet-Nam by accusing it 
of violating human rights and of failing to respect the 
humanitarian principles of warfare, His delegation 
strongly objected to such allegations and affirmed that 
it was the United States, not the Democratic Republic 
of Viet-Nam, which by using napalm and bombing the 
civilian population was violating the principles enun
ciated by the XXth International Conference of the 
Red Cross, 

12, With regard to the financial implications (A/C.3/ 
L.1649) of the draft resolution under discussion, he 
said that the estimated costs were too high and did 
not cover what was really needed. His delegation did 
not agree with the methods of recruitment used by the 
Secretariat, which too often employed outside con
sultants. Another most regrettable fact, demonstrated 
by past experience, was that such consultants were 
recruited exclusively in Western countries" In the 
opinion of his delegation, whatever work was required 
should be done by the staff of the Secretariat; if, in 
the present instance, it was absolutely essential to 
employ outsiders, only one consultant, not two 
employ outsiders, only one consultant, not two, should 
be recruited, for a short period and with due regard 
to the rules of geographical distribution. 

13. Miss HART (New Zealand) said that her delega
tion would support the draft resolution under consi
deration. However, she felt that, despite the essen
tially humanitarian character ofthe study contemplated 
in operative paragraph 2 it would be desirable that the 
report called for in paragraph 3 should be considered 
not by the Third Committee, but by the First or the 
Sixth. Her delegation had reservations concerning the 
change that had been made in the draft resolution to 
take account of the Soviet amendment. It would be bet
ter not to mention any of the principles adopted by the 
XXth International Conference of the Red Cross and 
simply to refer to resolution XXVIII, If only the fourth 
principle was deleted, it might appear that nuclear 
weapons were not covered by the general principles 
of the law of war. 

14. Mr. EL-FATTAL (Syria) thought that it was de
sirable to consider ways oi' securing the better appli
cation of humanitarian international conventions and 
rules in armed conflicts. The tragedy of Viet-Nam 
proved-if proof was still required-the necessity of 
putting humanitarian principles into practice in the 
conduct of modern warfare, and it was for that reason 
that the United Nations was obliged to formulate rules 
concerning armed conflicts even though the Charter 
outlawed war. 

15, He thanked the Soviet delegation for making it 
possible, through its amendment, to resolve the dilem
ma posed for a number of countries by the incom
patibility between the fourth sub-paragraph of opera-

tive paragraph 1 and the efforts which were being 
made to ban nuclear weapons. 

16. Lady GAITSKELL (United Kingdom) recalled that 
her delegation had voted in favour of resolution XXIII 
adopted at the Teheran Conference, on which the draft 
resolution under discussion was based. She agreed 
with the general intent of the latter, although she had 
reservations concerning operative paragraph 1, which 
contained something new. The principles set forth in 
that paragraph were of great importance in times of 
armed conflict; they were entirely commendable, but, 
as the United States representative had observed, 
they were expressed in too general terms. Her dele
gation therefore suggested that the word "Affirms" 
should replaced by "Takes note of". In addition, the 
General Assembly would invite the Secretary-General 
to ask Member States for their views on the matter; 
that should not cause any particular difficulties, 
since under the terms of operative paragraphs 2 and 
3 he would have to enter into consultation with 
Governments. 

17, She agreed with the comments made by the repre
sentatives of the United States and France on the 
Soviet amendment and said that her delegation would 
have had no objection to retaining the fourth principle. 

18. Miss FERRINGA (Netherlands) said that her 
delegation was in favour of draft resolution A/C"3/ 
L,1633/Rev.1, which sought to reaffirm basic humani
tarian principles. In her opinion, it would be preferable 
simply to refer to resolution XXVIII of the XXth Inter
national Conference of the Red Cross, for it seemed 
inappropriate to reaffirm that resolution while citing 
only three of its principles. 

19. Mr. SCHREIBER (Director, Division of Human 
Rights) said the Committee should realize that the 
studies contemplated in draft resolution A/C.3/ 
L.1633/Rev.1 were entirely new and would require a 
considerable degree of expertise in a field with which 
the Secretariat was not yet very familiar. He under
stood the concern for economy expressed by certain 
Member States, particularly those whose contribu
tions to the United Nations budget were very large, 
but in most cases available staff could not be used to 
carry out such projects. In the draft resolution under 
consideration, the Secretary-General was invited to 
undertake a study and was requested to report to the 
General Assembly. The study in question would ob
viously take some time and could not be completed by 
the next session of the General Assembly even with 
slightly increased resources. Moreover, it must be 
borne in mind that the First Committee was currently 
considering a draft resolution (A/C.1/L,444 and 
Add,1-9).!/ on disarmament which referred to the use 
of chemical and bacteriological weapons and in which 
the Assembly would ask the Secretary-General to draw 
up, if possible by 1 July 1969, a report on the possible 
effects of such weapons, based on the work of experts; 
thus, it would not be possible to see that report until 
the summer of 1969. 

20. With regard to the international organizations re
ferred to in draft resolution A/C.3/L,1633/Rev.1, 

_.!/ See Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-third Ses
sion, Annexes, agenda items 27, 28, 29, 94 and 96, document A/7441 
(Report of the First Committee on agenda item 27), para, 5 @. 



4 General Assembly -- Twenty-third Session - Third Committee 
----------- -----· 
operative paragraph 2, he ::;aid that the Secretary
General intended to hold consultations with the Inter
national Committee of the Red Cl'OS::>, and he noted 
in passing that in 196::! tr"e Red Cross Committee would 
have an expert comrnittee to consider questions some
what similar to those mentioned in the uraft r·esolu
tion" The Sec I etariat exlJected i;o benefit from the \Vor·k 
done ou the subject both in the Vnit~'d Nations and else
where ::-,-tt, Jf it was to be able to subwit a ::;ubstantial 
repcrt to the next se.ssion of the General Assembly, 
somEOi1e at t 1nited N2,tions HE-adquarters must be in a 
position ~o assemble the data with a proper awareness 
of the facts and to suggest what steps should be taken 
in furt;1eranee of the task in question. Upon inquiry, it 
haJ been founa that there was s.t present no one in the 
Se.::;:ecariat 'Nith sufflCib1t competence in that very 
specialized tidd. What was requir·ed was a study :lf 
internaUonal law by son,ec•ne with a thorough knowledge 
of the mi!ic:n-y methods used today. The two persons 
who were wu ntt:od in order to .reinforce the SecrEtariat's 
exit>ting resout·ces w-c·re indispensable to the execution 
of thu prcjeGt, whether they were engaged as const..lt
a.Jt& C~r ss temporary staff members. 

21, l\1r. ABOlJL-·NA})R (UHited Arab Republic) agreed 
'l•ii<.:h the comments of the represenlative of Sweden 
eoneen~iug the incorporation of the Soviet amendment. 
!Tnl1ke the rJeleg·ations of France and the United States, 
his deleg,ttion was firmly convinced that the general 
principles of ihe law of war were applicable to, and 
sl-:oclld l1e :;.ppiied to, nuclear weapons. 

~~" f·.'l'-'" lJ/\OLlKl (Fl'ance) paid a tribute to the Direc
tv'· ,,: tLe DiViSion of Human Rights for the very effec
t~v.-" Ncrk performed by the Division, durlngthe Inter
nat;ol!al ~TE-ar for Human Rights., However, he had 
.:.:eda ln reservatwns with regarJ to the ::,tatement of 
finhlll:iat :mplicatwns submitted in document A/C.3/ 
L.1649. Tbe study ent:ct:sted tc, tbe Secretary-General 
should b2 carried 011t with the help ofthe International 
C,>Jr:.mitteP of the f<ed l-::ro3S i~nd shou1d not, therefore, 
v His i.!. t\:1.!0 rec :·uHmt•t,t of adrlition~ll E:},.'"PEorts. His dele
gauor: fully r~serveC! its )COSition un thatquesti:m until 
lt W&.S c;'llbhiered D.)' n~e competent Umted Natwns 
boclit::s. That applied also to the finsnclal implications 
of th2 draft of 1vhi.eh F'rance had been a sponsor; the 
adoption o1 a t.iraft .reE.olution di.d not sigrufy approval 
of Us financial Implications, which must be considered 
by rhe C•:Jmf:t:t2nt bodies. 

20.. He also pcinted out that the new studies should be 
vit:wed hS a ''.'hole, taking into account the organization 
of thc 3ecl·etariat's work and the activities of the Com
mi»sion on Human Rights. ln the view of his delegation, 
the over-all question should be studied by the Com
miss~on on Human Rights at its next session. 

24.. Mr. KACHURENK(\ (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Hepublic) thanked the sponsors of the draft resolution 
for the efforts thAy had made ~o ensure the irnple
ment&tion of resolutions XXII and XXIIloftne Teheran 
Conference. The problem of peace was one of the key 
problems i,l ths modern worid, and the First Commit
tee was considering & whole series oi measures de
signed t0 eliminate the daPger of nuclear weapons 
which w,1s tbreatenil!g mi.llions of men, The draft reso
lution before the Committee was the result of a com
promise, since the sponsors were ar,xious that it should 
be adopted unanimously, On the other hand, as some 

delegations seemed to believe that the Soviet amenct
ment was unnecessary, his deiegalion wished to state 
that it did not think that the principles expressed in 
resolution XXVIII of the XXth Internatior.al Cor.ferenee 
of the Red Cross, and quoted in the draft resolution, 
were entirely satisfactory, The first of those prin
ciples implied that there was a right to adopt means 
of injuring the enemy, and the fourth was incomplete 
since It contained no reference to chemicai and bac
teriological weapons. The d2.ngers of those weapons 
had been stressed in several international documents, 
including the Protocol for the Prohibition of the Use 
in War of Asphyxiating, Poisonous or Other Gases, 
and of Bacteriological Methods of Warfare, signed at 
Geneva on 1'7 June 1925. The General Assembly in 
resolution 2162B (XXI) had invited all States to observe 
strictly the principles and objectives of that Protocol. 
However, certain Western States had not yet signed 
the Protocol. The deletion of the fourth sub-paragraph 
of operative paragraph 1 did not in any way affect the 
principle that all States should uphold human rights in 
periods of armed conflict. 

25. The CHAIHMAN urgently requEsted delegations 
to keep their statements brief, as the Committee only 
had a short time left to complete ns work. 

26. Mr. JHA (India) said that the sponsors wished to 
make a minor formal amendment to the draft reso
lution. In the second preambular paragraph, the words 
"United Nation8 11 should be deleted. Further, in the 
English text of operative paragraph 1, the words 
"inter alia" should be placed after and not before the 
words "laid clown", The French representative's pro
posal was acceptable to the sponsors, although they 
believed that the words "appropriate international 
organizations" were sufficient. Accordingly, opera
tive paragraph 2 would begin as follows: "Invites the 
Secretary-General, in consultation with the-- Inter
national Committee of the Reel Cross and other appro
priate international organizations, to study ••. ". With 
n.ga-rd to the New Zealand representative's proposal, 
he said that as the Swedish representative h::J.d already 
pointed out, the three principles quoted in oper:1tive 
paragraph l were not open to different interpretations 
and could therefore be confirrr.ed hy the General As
sembly. He hoped that the Committee would adopt the 
draft resolution, with those amendments, unanimously" 

27. Mrs. AFNAN (Iran) hopedthatthedraftresolution 
would be adopted by a very }arge majority, if not 
unanimously. 

28, She understood that couat.ries which contribUled 
large sums to the llnited Nations budget were con
cerned about the financial implications of resolutions. 
On the other hand, the more modest contributions paid 
by poorer countries perhaps represented a larger 
proportion of their total resources and they were 
equally interested in the financ1al aspects of pro- _ 
posals. Ten years ago the Division of Human Rights 
had received 1.83 per cent of the United Nations budget. 
Now, in spite of the increase in the volume of work, 
it was only receiving 1.30 per cent. Delegations should 
bE<' r that in mind when considering the financial 
implications. 

29. Miss HLASS (Jordan) moved the closure of the 
debate. 



1634th meeting -- 10 December 1968 5 

30. Mr. SCHREIBER (Director, Division of Human 
Rights) ob&erved that, under the terms of the draft 
resolution, the study of steps which could be taken to 
secure the better application of existing international 
conventions or other appropriate legal instruments, 
was to be entrusted to the Secretary-General, In that 
case, the Secretariat would have to have the necessary 
experts. On the other hand, if the General Assembly 
decided to entrust the study to the Red Cross, an indi
cation to that effect should be included in the draft 
resolution, and the Secretary-General would merely 
be obliged to transmit the study to the General As
sembly at its next session. 

31. He was not clear whether the General Assembly 
was intending to authorize the Commission on Human 
Rights to decide whether certain studies, which the 
General Assembly had asked the Secretary-General 
to submit at a specific session, should be continued, 
suspended or cancelled. If it was intending to do so, 
such authorization should, in view of the constitutional 
aspects of the situation, be expressly stated in the 
draft resolution. 

32. Mr. SOBOKE (Burundi) did not think that the de
bate should be closed. 

The motion for the closure of the debate was adopted 
by 53 votes to 7, "f!'ith 24 abstentions. 

Draft resolution A/C.3/L.1633/Rev.1 was adopted 
by 95 votes to none, with 1 abstention. 

33. Mr. ALO (Nigeria), explaining his vote, said he 
did not think that operative paragraph 2, which referred 
to international organizations in general, should men
tion one pa rticu!ar organization by name. However, in 
the interests of unanimity, his delegation had refrained 
from voting against the resolution. 

CONSIDERATION OF DRAFT RESOLUTION 
A/C.3/L.1635/REV.1 

34. Miss CAO-PINNA (Italy), introducing draft reso
lution A/C.3/L.1635/Rev.1, said that since 1947 the 
Cnited Nations and the specialized agencies, particu
larly UNESCO, had been working for the development 
of international understanding among youth. To that 
end, various resolutions and recommendations had 
been adopted, and various activities had been under
taken at the national and international levels. During 
International Year for Human Rights several resolu
tions, in particular resolution XX of the Teheran Con
ference, resolutions 1353 {XLV) and 1354 (XLV) ofthe 
Economic and Social Council and resolution 1.271 
adopted by the UNESCO General Conference at itsfif
teenth session, had drawn atte11tion to the fact that 
education could play a major role in making children 
aware of the dignity and rights of man, encouraging 
the participation of youth in international co-operation 
and promoting international understanding. The draft 
resolution proposed by her delegation adopted a new 
approach. It did not merely recommend Member States 
to encourage teaching about human rights and inter
national co-operation. It requested them to take appro
priate steps to introduce or to encourage, according 
to the scholastic system of each State, in the training 
of teaching staff for primary and secondary schools, 
the regular study of the problems of international or
ganization, with particular reference to the United 

Nations and the specialized agencies and to the prin
ciples proclaimed in the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights. Furthermore, it requested Member 
States to introduce or to encourage in the curricula 
of primary and secondary schools progressive in
struction in the subject in question. 

35. The experience of twenty year& had shown that 
the world's knowledge of the increasing role of the 
United Nations system in peaceful co-operation and 
in the improvement of levels of living was inadequate, 
and that that lack of knowledge was inevitably affecting 
the political, economic and social llfe of nations, as 
well as relations between peoples of different coun
tries. Experience had also shown that the older genera
tions were more resistant to changes in ideas and 
customs and to the elimination of prejudices. Accord
ingly, her delegation thought that one should look to 
the younger generation. The draft resolution was con
cerned with the truly young generation of children at 
primary and secondary schools. The 1967 Report on 
the World Social Situation.Y showed that the developing 
countries were making formidable efforts to develop 
secondary education. The draft resolution was there
fore addressed not to a minority but to the totality of 
young people between six and eighteen years. It was 
at that stage of education that teaching about human 
rights and international organizations should begin. 
However, in translating that principle into reality, 
another difficulty arose. In many countries of the 
world, the teachers who should provide education of 
that kind were themselves ill-informed. The draft 
resolution submitted by her delegation was designed 
to break that vicious circle. 

36. The revised text took into account the observa
tions and suggestions which had been made privately 
by several delegations. The preamble defined the 
problem which the draft resolution was aimed at solv
ing and in its revised form, differed little from the 
previous text. The main change was the deletion of 
the fourth preambular paragraph, which was re
dundant. The operative part had been substantially 
revised in order to take into account the differences 
in the scholastic systems of the varwus countries. 
They concerned, firstly, the role of the State in es
tablishing the curricula of primary and secondary 
schools, universities and teacher-training institutes 
and, secondly, the role of private initiative. In opera
tive paragraphs 1 and 2, the Member States were re
quested to introduce or to encourage, according to the 
scholastic system of each State, the regular study of 
international organizations, both in the institutions 
training teaching staff for primary and secondary 
schools and in the schools themselves. In operative 
paragraph 3, the authorities of private institutions 
were invited to make all the necessary efforts to 
achieve the aims envisaged in the preceding para
graphs. Operative paragraph 4 invited UNESCO to 
continue and to encourage the study of appropriate 
ways and means of promoting the achievement of the 
aims envisaged in the draft resolution. 

37. Her delegation had endeavoured to make the re
vised text acceptable to all delegations and hoped that 
it would be adopted unanimously. 

.J:J Uruted Nations publicatiOn, Sales No.: E.68.JV.9. 



6 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session - Third Committee 

38, Mr. ABOUL-NASR (United Arab Republic) said 
that the draft resolution just introduced by the repre
sentative of Italy caused some difficulties and he hoped 
that the Italian delegation would take his suggestions 
into account. 

39. In the third preambular paragraph, the term 
"everywhere" did not seem to be sufficiently clear. 
In addition, it would be better not to specify "in primary 
and secondary schools" but to leave it to each country 
to decide which was the most appropriate educational 
stage, by adopting a formula such as "at early stages 
of education" or "at appropriate stages of education". 
That comment was also applicable to the fourth pre
ambular paragraph, 

40. He could not see the point of the fifth preambular 
paragraph, The fact that educators had not received 
special instruction on those matters was not the only 
reason which prevented young people from receiving 
the required training. He did not know what meaning 
to give to "special instruction in international or
ganization" and did not think that the expression "in
ternational organization" should be retained, 

41, In operative paragraph 1, the word "regular" did 
not seem appropriate, Moreover, it would be better if 
the expression "problems of international organiza
tion" were replaced by "principles and purposes ofthe 
Charter", 

42. In operative paragraph 2, the words "primary 
and secondary schools" should be replaced by a for
mula of the type he had suggested for the third pre
ambular paragraph. The meaning of "progressive 
instruction" was not clear and the expression "to 
seize every opportunity" was somewhat inflated, It 
would also be better to delete the word "peaceful", 
since all co-operation was necessarily peaceful. He 
was not happy with the expression "a higher level of 
well-being" and hoped that the Italian delegationcould 
propose a more satisfactory wording, 

Litho m U.N. 

43, Operative paragraph 3 was addressed to univer
sities and other scholastic institutions. He wondered 
whether it was advisable for the General Assembly to 
address itself to educational establishments rather 
than to Governments. 

44, Mr. DIALLO (Upper Volta) observed that it was 
very important to publicize the principles set forth 
in the United Nations Charter and in the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights throughout the world, 
Those principles should not be disseminated solely 
during the International Year for Human Rights. He 
hoped that the authorities at Pretoria and Lisbon 
would take them into account and teach them to 
children who, later, would dissociate themselves from 
the retrograde policies of their Governments, 

45, He supported the general principles underlying 
the draft resolution and hoped that the Italian dele
gation would find a wording acceptable to all delega
tions, He would like the Italian delegation to incor
porate into the draft resolution a new operative 
paragraph 3 reading: 

"Requests the United Nations Educational, Scienti
fic and Cultural Organization and the other spe
cialized agencies concerned, the United Nations 
Development Programme and the United Nations 
Industrial Development Organization, to provide 
assistance to Member States, particularly those 
which are developing countries, with a view to en
abling them to achieve the aims envisaged in opera
tive paragraphs 1 and 2;". 

46. That amendment placed the problem in true 
perspective, since a number of developing countries 
were not in a position to undertake the programmes 
mentioned in operative paragraphs 1 and 2 because of 
financial considerations. It would be fitting for them to 
receive the assistance they needed for that purpose. 

The meeting rose at 6.5 p.m. 

77301-September 1970-2,275 


